

**COMHAIRLE CATHRACH CHORCAÍ
HALLA NA CATHRACH
CORCAIGH**



**CORK CITY COUNCIL
CITY HALL
CORK**

Bíodh a fhios agat go dtionólfar cruinniú de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí ar an dáta thíosluaite, ar a **5.30 A CHLOG I.N., I SEOMRA NA COMHAIRLE, HALLA NA CATHRACH, CORCAIGH** chun na gnóthaí seo a leanas a dhéanamh:-

Take notice that a Meeting of Cork City Council will be held on the undermentioned date, at the hour of **5.30 P.M. IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL, CORK** for the transaction of the following business:-

GNÁTHCHRUINNIÚ – DÉ LUAIN, 9^ú NOLLAIG 2019

ORDINARY MEETING – MONDAY, 9th DECEMBER 2019

1. Votes of Sympathy.
2. Votes of Congratulations/Best Wishes.

3. **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

To consider any item the Lord Mayor may wish to raise.

4. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S ITEMS**

To consider any items the Chief Executive may wish to raise.

5. **MINUTES**

To consider, and if so decided, to approve as correct record and sign Minutes of:-

- Ordinary Meeting of An Chomhairle held on the 11th November 2019.
- 2020 Budget Meeting held on the 14th November 2019.

6. **QUESTION TIME**

Questions submitted enclosed.

7. **PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT FOYLE AVENUE, KNOCKNAHEENY, CORK**

In accordance with Section 179(4)(a) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, An Chomhairle to consider the proposed residential development at Foyle Avenue, Knocknaheeny, in the City of Cork and the report of the Director of Housing thereon as required under Section 179(3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) dated 5th December 2019.

8. **PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT GLEN RYAN ROAD, CORK**

In accordance with Section 179(4)(a) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, An Chomhairle to consider the proposed residential development at Glen Ryan Road, in the City of Cork and the report of the Director of Housing thereon as required under Section 179(3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) dated 5th December 2019.

9. **PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT THE JUNCTION OF SHANAKIEL ROAD WITH BLARNEY ROAD, CORK**

In accordance with Section 179(4)(a) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, An Chomhairle to consider the proposed residential development at the Junction of Shanakiel Road with Blarney Road, in the City of Cork and the report of the Director of Housing thereon as required under Section 179(3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) dated 5th December 2019.

10. **PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT 71 SPRING LANE AND ADJOINING SITE TO THE WEST, BLACKPOOL, CORK**

In accordance with Section 179(4)(a) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, An Chomhairle to consider the proposed residential development at the site situated at 71 Spring Lane and adjoining site to the west, Blackpool, Cork, in the City of Cork and the report of the Director of Housing thereon as required under Section 179(3) of the Planning and Development Act, 2000 (as amended) dated 5th December 2019.

11. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: BALLYVOLANE, CORK–GALTAN CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 21st November, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Galtan CLG in respect of the provision of one three bed unit at 42, Pynes Valley, Ballyvolane, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €287,000 be granted to Galtan CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme for the provision of one three bed unit at 42 Pynes Valley, Ballyvolane, Cork.”

12. **CAPITAL ASSISTANCE SCHEME ACQUISITION: KNAPPS SQUARE, CORK – FOCUS HOUSING ASSOCIATION CLG**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Housing dated 21st November, 2019 in relation to a loan facility for Focus Housing Association CLG in respect of the provision of one 2 bedroomed apartment at No. 8, Camden Court, Knapps Square, Cork and if so decided to adopt the following resolution:-

“Resolved that, pursuant to the provision of Section 6 of the Housing (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1992, a loan facility not exceeding €190,655 be granted to Focus Housing Association CLG, subject to the terms of the Capital Assistance Scheme, in respect of the provision of one 2 bedroomed apartment at No. 8 Camden Court, Knapps Square, Cork.”

13. **EXTINGUISHMENT OF PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY OF ROADS AND FOOTPATHS AT GLENAMOY LAWN AND AVONMORE PARK, MAYFIELD, CORK**

An Chomhairle to consider the report of the Director of Operations dated 24th October 2019 in relation to the proposed extinguishment of public right of way of roads and footpaths at Glenamoy Lawn and Avonmore Park, Mayfield, Cork, and if so decided to adopt the following Resolution:-

“No written objection having been received and considered within the prescribed statutory period setout in section 73 (1) (a) of the Roads Act 1993, it is now hereby Ordered that the Public Right of Way which runs from the point marked AA at Glenamoy Lawn, Mayfield, Cork, on said map for a distance of approximately 22 Metres in an Easterly direction to point marked BB; from the point marked BB at Glenamoy Lawn on said map for a distance of approximately 23 Metres in a Northerly direction to point marked CC; from point marked AA at Glenamoy Lawn on said map for a distance of approximately 22 Metres in a Northerly direction to point marked DD; from point marked DD at Glenamoy Lawn on said map for a distance of approximately 21 Metres in a Easterly direction to point marked CC, be extinguished forthwith”.

14. **CORPORATE POLICY GROUP – 2nd DECEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Corporate Policy Group, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 2nd December 2019.

14.1 **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO 31st OCTOBER 2019**

J. Hallahan presented the Financial Statements to 31st October 2019 and responded to queries raised.

Decision of Group

It was agreed to refer the Financial Statements to 31st October 2019 to An Chomhairle for consideration.

14.2 **LORD MAYOR'S ITEMS**

The Lord Mayor informed the Group that the Commemoration Steering Group had met earlier that day, at which it was agreed to recommend the holding of a Special Meeting of Council on January 30th 2020 to commemorate the 100th Anniversary of the holding of the first meeting of the newly elected Cork Corporation at which Cllr. Tomás MacCurtain was elected Lord Mayor.

Decision of Group

It was agreed to recommend to An Chomhairle that a Special Meeting of An Chomhairle would be held at 6.30 p.m. on Thursday, January 30th 2020.

14.3 **MOTIONS**

14.3.1 **DEAF AWARENESS TRAINING FOR CITY COUNCILLORS AND COUNCIL STAFF**

‘That Cork City Council periodically provide deaf awareness training to City Councillors and Council staff, particularly Council staff who deal with queries from the public; with said training to be provided by trainers with expertise and experience specifically in deaf issues.’

(Proposers: Cllr. J. Sheehan, S. O’Callaghan 19/490)

Decision of Group

Members noted the report of the DOS and agreed to refer same to An Chomhairle for approval.

14.3.2 **RENAME ROADS AND TRANSPORTATION DIRECTORATE**

‘That Cork City council would rename their directorate Roads and Transportation to Transport and Mobility.’

(Proposer Cllr. C. Finn 19/487)

Decision of Group

Members noted the report of the DOS and agreed to refer same to An Chomhairle for information.

14.3.3 **FUNDS FROM LOCAL PROPERTY TAX**

‘That Cork City Council will ensure in coming years that any funds available from keeping the Local Adjustment Factor (LAF) for the Local Property Tax (LPT) at 0% be distributed to the 5 Local Area Committees (LACs) from September 2020 LAF/LPT annual meeting from there on this will allow the LACs an annual operating budget to be spent by the agreement of the Elected Representatives’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/504)

Decision of Group

Members noted the report of the Head of Finance and agreed to refer same to An Chomhairle for approval.

15. **PARTY WHIPS – 25th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Party Whips, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 25th November 2019.

15.1 **SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2020**

Party Whips considered the schedule of meetings 2020.

Decision of Party Whips

It was agreed by Party Whips to refer the schedule of meetings 2020 to An Chomhairle for approval.

15.2 **CRITERIA FOR OFFERING WARD FUNDS**

‘That the criteria for offering Ward Funds be altered to amounts of €1500 being made available through individual Councillors and up to €5000 if collectively agreed by ward Councillors, for agreed capital works; and that such works be conducted through and for Cork City Council as well as for recognised civic and community organisations.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/493)

Decision of Party Whips

It was agreed by Party Whips that the current ward fund guidelines and amounts therein remain unchanged and to update item d) to substitute with the Finance and Estimates Committee and refer this decision to An Chomhairle for approval.

15.3 **TREATMENT OF STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE MOTIONS**

For Strategic Policy Committee minutes, any items under **Decision of Committee** that are recommended to An Chomhairle for approval or for information will appear on the full ordinary meeting of the Council agenda. The reports will be contained in the minutes of the Strategic Policy Committees in the Council pack.

Decision of Party Whips

It was agreed to refer this item to An Chomhairle for information.

16. **ITEMS REFERRED FROM MEETING OF AN CHOMHAIRLE 11th NOVEMBER 2019**

16.1 **STRATEGIC, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, ENTERPRISE & PLANNING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 31st OCTOBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the minutes of the Strategic, Economic Development, Enterprise and Planning Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 31st October 2019.

16.1.1 **LIVING CITY INITIATIVE – PROGRESS REPORT Q3 2019**

To note the Q3 progress report on the Living Cities Initiative.

Decision of Committee

To note the Q3 progress report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for information.

16.2 **MOTIONS**

16.2.1 **FUTURE NEEDS IN THE NEW CITYWIDE AREA DEVELOPMENT PLAN**

That Cork City Council liaise with all relevant stakeholders (CIT, UCC, CUH etc.) in relation to proposed growth in figures, build and work in collaboration with them to encompass future needs in the new City Wide Area Development Plan which will be required with the extension of the City Boundary and put in place sustainable student, worker, transport developments that would cater for the needed development over the next number of years. We need to sit with these institutions and invite all relevant stakeholders to relevant committees on a regular basis so we can future proof further development.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/016)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the Director of Services report and recommended to An Chomhairle for information.

16.2.2 **MAPS OF NEW CITY EXTENSION DEVELOPMENT BOUNDARIES**

That Cork City Council provide maps of the new City extension development boundaries and an update on the next local area plans.

(Proposer: Cllr. Ger Keohane 19/249)

Decision of Committee

The committee agreed to refer the motion to An Chomhairle for information.

16.2.3 **AUDIT OF DERELICT PROPERTIES**

That Cork City Council would carry out a full audit of all derelict properties on Cork City Council's derelict sites register to ensure that they are not dangerous and also to carry out a survey to ensure that all derelict sites in Cork City are included on the derelict sites register.

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Gould 19/279)

Decision of Committee

The committee agreed to refer the motion to An Chomhairle for information.

16.2.4 **PROPERTIES ON THE NATIONAL INVENTORY OF ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE**

‘That this Council adopt a policy of having each property listed on the National Inventory of Architectural Heritage also listed as protected structures within the City Development Plan.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/300)

Decision of Committee

The committee agreed to refer the motion to An Chomhairle for information.

16.3 **ROADS & TRANSPORTATION STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 21st OCTOBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the minutes of the Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 21st October 2019.

16.3.1 **EXPAND THE CYCLING NETWORK IN THE NORTHSIDE**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council draft and cost a plan to expand the existing cycling network into the Northside with an emphasis to link the City Center network to areas of high rental populations such as Blackpool.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/228)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.2 **FUNDING FOR EXPANSION OF THE PUBLIC BIKE SCHEME IN CORK**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council request funding directly from the Department of Transport, Tourism and Sport to hire workers to facilitate the expansion of the existing public bike scheme in Cork.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/229)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.3 **POLICY FOR TOWING VEHICLES**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That this Council re-institute a policy of towing away vehicles (of any type) causing obstruction to other users of the public realm, when such vehicles are illegally parked/placed on footpaths, cycle paths, bus lanes, the misuse of disability parking spaces, and any other thoroughfare.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/298)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.4 **BYE LAWS TO SUSPEND THE USE OF RICK SHAWS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council introduce an emergency bye-law to immediately suspend the use of Rick Shaw's on the streets of Cork City until such time as these vehicles regulate their service for use on the public streets of our City.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 17/291)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.5 **DISC PARKING IN CITY CENTRE**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cook Street, Marlboro Street and Princes Street on the South Mall side be reopened for Disc Parking and set down for stopping in the City Centre.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 18/153)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.6 **INSTALL HARD INFRASTRUCTURE AT CYCLE LANES**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council moves to install hard infrastructure (such as exists on the cycle lane on South Main Street) to protect 24 hour cycle lanes in areas that are blackspots for illegal parking in order to ensure the safety of cyclists and encourage more people to take up cycling in the city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/033)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.7 **INSTALL HARD INFRASTRUCTURE AT CYCLE LANES ON ALFRED STREET**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council as a priority install hard infrastructure (such as exists on the cycle lane on South Main Street) along the cycle lanes on Alfred Street as most illegal parking on these sites occurs after the patrolling hours of traffic wardens.’

(Proposer: Cllr. F. Ryan 19/034)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.8 **LEE TO SEA GREENWAY PROJECT**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That City Council would endorse and fully support with amendments if necessary the LEE to SEA greenway project that was launched and presented to the Roads and Transportation S.P.C. in early May by Stephan Koch of U.C.C.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/221)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.9 **FUNDING FOR ROADS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council through the SPC on Roads seek a meeting with the minister and seek funding for, 1) estate road resurfacing, 2) funding for traffic calming, 3) additional public lights, 4) laneway closures, 5) green to parking programmes. All these programmes were of huge community value and help build connectivity between Council, Gardaí and community groups.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/087)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.10 **20 KILOMETER PER HOUR TRAFFIC ZONES AROUND PRIMARY SCHOOLS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That this Council works towards instituting a policy of 20 kilometre per hour traffic zones within 250 of all primary schools in its administrative area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/359)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.11 **NO PARKING ZONES OUTSIDE SCHOOLS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That this Council works towards instituting a policy of no parking zones outside any primary or secondary school in its administrative area, during school hours and within an academic year, to within no closer than 50 metres beyond the curtilage of such schools.

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/360)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.12 **NEIGHBOURHOODS TO PARTICIPATE IN TRAFFIC CALMING INTERVENTIONS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council will invite neighbourhoods to participate in a city-wide trial of Home Zones, DIY Streets and other innovative traffic-calming interventions and pedestrian-priority measures in residential areas. Benefits to road safety and community from reducing the danger and dominance of private motor vehicles in residential areas will be measured and case studies laid before Council.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/364)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.13 **NO DROP ZONES OUTSIDE SCHOOLS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

“Noting the results of the European Environmental Agency ‘Air Quality in Europe - 2018’ report that in Ireland, the number of premature deaths attributable to air pollution is estimated at 1,510 people and is mainly due to cardiovascular disease. Further noting that the WHO has described air pollution as the ‘single biggest environmental health risk’; Cork City Council will put in place ‘no drop zones’ (with the exception of blue badge holders) outside primary and secondary schools to protect children and young adults from the known health impacts of air pollution and to encourage alternative modes of transport where possible and alleviate traffic during school opening and closing times.”

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/375)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.14 **MORE PUBLIC BIKE RACKS**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

“That Cork City Council provide more public bike racks to enable cyclists to lock their bicycles at more locations in the City.”

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/388)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.15 **ESTABLISH A POSITION OF SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORT OFFICER**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Community, Culture and Placemaking, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That this City Council establish a position of Sustainable Transport Officer to better inform policy decisions, and encourage enforcement of existing policies, in the areas of public transport, cycling and walking.’

(Proposers: Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. O. Moran, Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. L. Bogue 19/403)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.16 **EXTEND THE BIKE SHARE SCHEME**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That any extension of this City's Bike Share scheme include stations at Douglas Street, Turners Cross, Ballypheane and The Lough.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/404)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.17 **EXPENDITURE CODES FOR BUS AND CYCLE LANES**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Operations, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That dedicated expenditure codes for this Council's budgetary process be created for annual expenditure on bus lanes and on cycle lanes.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/406)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

16.3.18 **LEE TO SEA GREENWAY**

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure Development, dated 16th October 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

That the Lee to Sea Greenway as proposed by the Cork Cycling Campaign and Cork City Council be progressed to its early planning stages.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/368)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for approval.

17. **ENVIRONMENT, WATER & AMENITY STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 18th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the minutes of the Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 18th November 2019.

17.1 **NATIONAL FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, in relation to the adoption of the National Flood Risk Management Plan.

Decision of Committee

Members considered the report of the Director of Services and on the proposal of Comhairleoir Sean Martin, seconded by Comhairleoir Terry Shannon it was agreed to recommend the following resolution to Council:

“Now Council hereby RESOLVES THAT

In the matter of the National Flood Risk Management Plan and having considered the Plan and the Director of Services Roads and Environment Operations report dated the 31st October 2019 thereon it is hereby resolved to adopt The National Flood Risk Management Plan”

17.2 **MOTIONS**

17.2.1 **REDUCE THE USE OF GLYSOPHATE BASED WEEDKILLER**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 12th September, 2019 on the following motion:

‘Acknowledging the precautionary principle relating to environmental matters as outlined in Paragraph 2 of article 191 of the Lisbon Treaty, that 'Union policy on the environment shall aim at a high level of protection taking into account the diversity of situations in the various regions of the Union. It shall be based on the precautionary principle and on the principles that preventive action should be taken, that environmental damage should as a priority be rectified at source and that the polluter should pay’, Cork City Council will reduce its use of Glysophate based weedkiller to use on Japanese Knotweed and other invasive species only. Glysophate based weedkillers will not be used for general maintenance of green areas. In procuring contractors to undertake work of this nature, the Council will include this condition in any negotiations and agreements.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/283)

Decision of Committee.

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations and recommend it to An Chomhairle for information.

17.2.2 **TIDY TOWNS SUB COMMITTEE**

Members considered the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations, dated 12th September, 2019 on the following motion:

“That Cork City Council would put in place a Tidy Towns Sub Committee which would feed into the Environment Committee. With the expansion of the City there are a number of very active tidy towns groups successfully operating in the suburbs and this would be an ideal opportunity to embrace these groups and hopefully grow the Tidy Towns initiative across the City for the benefit of all local Communities”

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/372)

Decision of Committee.

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Roads & Environment Operations and recommend it to An Chomhairle for information.

18. **COMMUNITY, CULTURE & PLACEMAKING STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE – 18th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the minutes of the Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 18th November 2019.

18.1 **MOTIONS**

18.1.1 **APPOINTMENT OF CYCLING OFFICER**

Members considered the report of the Director of Service, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 4th November, 2019 on the following motion:

‘That the City Council appoints a dedicated Cycling Officer in order to build a positive narrative on the benefits of cycling and associated cycling community projects.’

(Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/290)

Decision of Committee:

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Chomhairle for information.

18.1.2 **TRANSGENDER COMMUNITY**

Members considered the report of the Director of Service, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 4th November, 2019 on the following motion:

“This Council recognizes the contribution that our Transgender Community makes to the city of Cork. However, Cork City Council notes that many within the Transgender Community still suffer discrimination and that visibility of the community is an important part of raising awareness and overcoming discrimination. As a statement of our solidarity with the Transgender Community, this council agrees to illuminate Cork City Hall in the colours of the Transgender Community’s flag and to fly this flag over Cork City Hall on March 31st to coincide with Transgender Day of Visibility.”

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/376)

Decision of Committee:

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Chomhairle for information.

18.1.3 **INTRODUCTION OF DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTION REBATE SCHEME FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT**

Members considered the report of the Director of Service, Community, Culture & Placemaking dated 4th November, 2019 on the following motion:

“That Cork City Council would immediately introduce a development contribution rebate scheme for residential development, which mirrors the current waiver scheme available to commercial developments. We are calling for this rebate to be applied to all schemes with an existing permission, but not yet commenced and all future permissions, in order to assist in the construction of housing targets for the City.”

(Proposer: Cllrs. D. Cahill, J. Kavanagh, D. Forde, S. O’Callaghan, G. Kelleher and D. Boylan 19/401)

Decision of Committee:

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Chomhairle for approval.

18.1.4 **ZERO WASTE POLICY**

‘That Cork City Council commit to implementing a zero waste policy, with a particular emphases on promoting circular economy as a long term strategy. As part of this commitment, Cork City Council would accept that incineration of waste for profit is inconsistent with this approach and the circular economy.

In adopting this motion Cork City Council will generate an implementation report which would include but not be limited to exploring ways that Cork City Council can reduce waste it generates and encourages local groups, communities and businesses to adopt a similar approach.

Information:

The circular economy is a model of production and consumption which involves sharing, leasing, reusing, repairing, refurbishing and recycling existing materials and products as long as possible. In this way, the life cycle of products is extended.

In practice, it implies reducing waste to a minimum. When a product reaches the end of its life, its materials are kept within the economy wherever possible. These can be productively used again and again, thereby creating further value.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/307)

Decision of Committee:

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, Community, Culture & Placemaking and recommend it to An Chomhairle for information.

19. **INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS & TOURISM STRATEGIC POLICY COMMITTEE** **– 18th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the minutes of the International Relations and Tourism Strategic Policy Committee, and if so decided to approve the following recommendations from its meeting held 18th November 2019.

19.1 **MOTIONS**

19.1.1 **MAINTENANCE AND CONSERVATION OF HERITAGE SITES**

Cork City Council, as part of its tourism strategy, will investigate allocating funding to the maintenance and conservation of heritage sites and markers in Cork City. Cork City Council particularly notes the poor condition of plaques on North Main Street dedicated to Lord Mayor Terence MacSwiney and the condition of the exterior of Huguenot chapel facing onto French Church Street.’

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/284)

Decision of Committee

It was agreed to accept the report of the Director of Services, dated 12 September 2019, and to recommend it to An Chomhairle for information.

20. **SOUTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 26th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the following item from the South East Local Area Committee meeting held on the 26th November 2019.

ROAD CLOSURE AT MARINA ROAD

“That the Marina Road, from Páirc Uí Chaíomh to the junction at Church Avenue be closed to cars on Sundays during daylight hours in order to provide a safe, pollution-free and accessible space for people with disabilities, the elderly and children to enjoy the outdoors and exercise, contributing to an active, sociable and healthy city”

(Proposer: Cllr. L. Bogue 19/374)

Decision of Committee

On the proposal of Comhairleoir L. Bogue, seconded by Comhairleoir T. Shannon, the Committee agreed to refer this motion to full Council.

21. **SOUTH CENTRAL LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to consider the following item from the South Central Local Area Committee meeting held on the 25th November 2019.

ROAD WIDENING AT COONEY’S LANE

The Committee noted the report of the Director of Infrastructure & Development dated 21st November 2019 on the following motion referred to the Committee:

‘That Cork City Council dramatically improve and widen Cooney's Lane and the Road on Elm Hill from the junction of Cooney's Lane to Cork Airport Roundabout so as to facilitate the enormous amount of extra traffic that is going to be generated by the large new housing development on Cooney's Lane.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/492)

Decision of Committee

On the proposal of Comhairleoir S. Martin, seconded by Comhairleoir S. O’Callaghan the committee agreed to accept the report and to refer it to An Chomhairle for consideration.

22. **CLIMATE ACTION COMMITTEE – 11th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the Climate Action Committee from its meeting held on the 11th November 2019.

23. **SOUTH CENTRAL LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South Central Local Area Committee from its meeting held on the 25th November 2019.

24. **SOUTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South West Local Area Committee, from its meeting held on the 25th November 2019.

25. **NORTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North East Local Area Committee from its meeting held on the 25th November 2019.

26. **NORTH WEST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 25th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the North West Local Area Committee from its meeting held on the 25th November 2019.

27. **SOUTH EAST LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE – 26th NOVEMBER 2019**

An Chomhairle to note the minutes of the South East Local Area Committee from its meeting held on the 26th November 2019.

28. **CORRESPONDENCE**

An Chomhairle to note correspondence, if any.

29. **CONFERENCE/SEMINAR SUMMARIES**

An Chomhairle to note summaries by Members of Conferences/Seminars attended, if any.

30. **CONFERENCES/SEMINARS**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at Conferences/Seminars tabled on the night, if any.

30.1 **MANAGING BETTER - SUPPORT AND ADVICE FOR TRUSTEES**

An Chomhairle to approve the attendance of Comhairleoir T. Shannon at the Managing Better – Support and Advice for Trustees Conference held at the Iontas Centre, Conabury, Castleblayney, Co. Monaghan on the 15th November 2019.

31. **TRAINING**

An Chomhairle to approve attendance at training tabled on the night, if any.

32. **CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT**

An Chomhairle to note the Chief Executive’s Monthly Management Report for October 2019.

33. **MOTIONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES**

An Chomhairle to note the motions on Appendix 1 attached, that have been referred to the relevant Committees as determined by the Meetings Administrator, due notice of which has been given.

34. **MOTIONS**

34.1 **BUS STOPS AT MARWOOD ESTATE**

‘That Cork City Council write to Bus Eireann seeking an update on the new bus stops to be installed at the lower entrance to the Marwood Estate, Riverstown, Glanmire.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/278)

34.2 **BUS SERVICE FOR UPPER GLANMIRE AND KILCULLY**

‘That Cork City Council call on Bus Eireann to provide a service for the upper Glanmire and Kilcully area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/318)

34.3 **REGULATION OF RICKSHAWS**

‘That Cork City Council would again write to the Minister and ask that Rick Shaws be banned from our streets until such time as they are regulated in the same way as every other vehicle using our streets are regulated.’

(Proposer Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/419)

34.4 **RECREATION FACILITIES AT KILMORE ROAD**

‘Following my proposal at the North West Regeneration meeting, that Council make an application to the Department of Housing and Environment to consider under the Regeneration Programme, moving recreation facilities at Kilmore Road across to the proposed North West Regional Park on Kilmore Road, invite external supports and develop the existing site at Kilmore Park in conjunction with local residents.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/478)

34.5 **INCREASE THE DERELICT SITES LEVY**

‘That Cork City Council call upon the Government and the Oireachtas, in particular the Minister for Housing, Planning and Local Government, to amend section 23(3) of the Derelict Sites Act 1990 [as amended by section 59 of the Planning and Development (Amendment) Act 2018] so as to increase the derelict sites levy to such amount as is equal to 15 per cent of the market value of the urban land concerned or such other percentage (not exceeding 15 per cent) of the said market value as may be prescribed by the Local Authority in whose functional area the said land is situated. ‘

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/512)

34.6 **NEEDS OF BUS USERS**

‘That the CE would ask Bus Eireann if they have a users council to gather information on the needs of bus users.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 19/525)

34.7 **PUBLIC RIGHT TO APPEAL PLANNING DECISIONS**

‘That this Council does not support any change to the public's right to appeal planning decisions, being suggested in the Government's proposed Housing, Planning and Development Bill.’

(Proposers: Cllr. D. Boyle, Cllr. O. Moran, Cllr. L. Bogue, Cllr. C. Finn 19/533)

APPENDIX 1

MOTIONS

An Chomhairle to note the referral to the relevant Committee of the following motions, due notice of which has been given:-

1. **REINSTATE FOOTPATH**

‘That Cork City Council reinstate the footpath outside Emoh Ruo, Landscape Park and The Elms, Clareville Estate.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/168)

South Central Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

2. **FOOTPATHS AT PALACEANNE AND KILCOLMAN**

‘(a) That Cork City Council working in tandem with the residents of Palaceanne and Kilcolman look at ways which would allow footpaths to be created at their exits on the South Douglas Road allowing people safe pedestrian access to Douglas or town. (b) Funding be identified to locate a green man crossing in this area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/198)

South Central Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

3. **RESURFACE SILVERCOURT, SILVERSPRINGS**

‘That Cork City Council immediately resurface Silvercourt, Silversprings as a matter of urgency.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/251)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

4. **FLOODING AT JOHN BARLEYCORN BRIDGE, GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council install a permanent solution to the ever present flooding that occurs at the John Barleycorn Bridge, Riverstown, Glanmire and to apply for a road closure if necessary to solve this problem once and for all.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/275)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

5. **TREES AT BROOKVILLE ESTATE, GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council make safe the dangerous trees at the entrance to the Brookville Estate, Riverstown, Glanmire.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/276)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

6. **RESURFACING WORKS AT HAZELWOOD, GLANMIRE**

‘That Cork City Council give me an update please on the resurfacing works to be carried out in the Riverview and Crestfield Downs Estates in Hazelwood, Glanmire.’

(Proposer: Cllr. G. Keohane 19/277)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

7. **YELLOW BOX AT BANDUFF ROAD AND DUBLIN HILL**

‘That Cork City Council paint yellow boxes outside the estate on the Banduff Road and all estates on Dublin hill.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/319)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

8. **REDUCE SPEED LIMIT ON RATHCOONEY, BALLYVOLANE AND BANDUFF ROADS**

‘That Cork City Council reduce the speed limit on the Rathcooney, Ballyvolane Road and Banduff Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. O’Flynn 19/320)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

9. **RENAME ALBERT QUAY TO TERENCE MACSWINEY’S QUAY**

‘That Cork City Council rename Albert Quay in its entirety to Terence MacSwiney’s Quay.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. Martin 19/420)

Party Whips - 25/11/2019

10. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT ASHMOUNT ESTATE**

‘That Cork City Council would put in place traffic calming measures on the main road through Ashmount Estate. This is the main road through Ashmount and many cars use this road on a daily basis. Vehicles can be seen every day travelling at high speed on this road on a regular basis and this is a very serious public safety hazard given the large number of residents and particularly children living in this area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/429)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

11. **PLAY AREA AT ASHMOUNT ESTATE**

‘That Cork City Council would refurbish the fenced in area in the centre of Ashmount Estate and put in place a playground, a basketball court or some form of play area for the children living in this area. This facility used to be the responsibility of Cork County Council but since the boundary extension this facility is now the responsibility of Cork City Council and there is a significant deficit of play areas for young children in this area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Kavanagh 19/430)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

12. **RENAME ROADS AND TRANSPORTATION DIRECTORATE**

‘That Cork City council would rename their directorate Roads and Transportation to Transport and Mobility.’

(Proposer Cllr. C. Finn 19/487)

Corporate Policy Group – 02/12/2019

13. **TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES AT KILLARD**

‘Speed Sign at each side of Killard plus B) request that the Roads Division look at traffic calming measures for the village C) request a footpath renewal scheme and D) additional public lighting in the area.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/499)

North West Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

14. **PATH AT PARK COURT/MEELICK PARK**

‘That Cork City Council build a path that allows residents from Park Court/Meelick Park to gain access to bus on the North Ring Road without walking through a mud path that can be overgrown.’

(Proposer: Cllr. J. Maher 19/503)

North East Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

15. **FUNDS FROM LOCAL PROPERTY TAX**

‘That Cork City Council will ensure in coming years that any funds available from keeping the Local Adjustment Factor (LAF) for the Local Property Tax (LPT) at 0% be distributed to the 5 Local Area Committees (LACs) from September 2020 LAF/LPT annual meeting from there on this will allow the LACs an annual operating budget to be spent by the agreement of the Elected Representatives’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/504)

Corporate Policy Group – 02/12/2019

16. **FOOTPATHS AT LIAM HEALY ROAD, FARRANREE**

‘That Council repair and install new footpaths at Liam Healy Road, Farranree’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/505)

North West Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

17. **LIGHTING AT DEANROCK ESTATE**

‘That City Council would replace/reinstate the two public lighting lamps between Blackwater Grove/Owenabue Close in Dean Rock Estate that were damaged and removed and never replaced. This area is now in total darkness and a huge concern for residents in the area particularly the elderly population’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/506)

South West Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

18. **ACCESS TO EMERGENCY VEHICLES**

‘That City Council would put in place measures that would give access to emergency vehicles on all our public walkways across our city.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/507)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 16/12/2019

19. **REVIEW THE CBL PROCESS**

‘That City Council Housing Dept. would review the CBL process in relation to informing housing applicants bidding for properties on this site.

Reasons for this is that applicants are bidding on properties but not going through the whole process because when they put the property in the basket they then assume that it’s logged and sign out.’

(Proposer: Cllr. H. Cremin 19/508)

Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 16/12/2019

20. **FOOTPATH ON GEORGE’S QUAY**

‘That this Council examine the footpath along George’s Quay. There are a number of paving slabs lose and are a trip hazard.’

(Proposer: F. Kerins 19/509)

South Central Local Area Committee – 25/11/2019

21. **TAKE IN CHARGE ARDFIELD ESTATE, GRANGE**

‘That Cork City Council work to ensure that Ardfield Estate in Grange is taken in charge by the Council as soon as possible. ‘

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/510)

South Central Local Area Committee – 27/01/2020

22. **ZONING LAND FOR EDUCATIONAL USE**

‘Given the extremely long waiting lists for ASD classes in local primary and secondary schools and the serious shortage of special schools in Cork, that Cork City Council ensure that, in the City Development Plan, a particular emphasis is placed on zoning land for educational use.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/511)

Strategic, Economic Development, Enterprise & Planning Strategic Policy Committee – 16/12/2019

23. **TRAFFIC LIGHT SEQUENCE AT THE KINSALE ROAD ROUNDABOUT**

That Cork City Council, in conjunction with the other relevant authorities, change the traffic light sequence on the traffic lights at the Kinsale Road roundabout on weekdays between the hours of 7:00 am and 9:00 am so as to ensure that during said time period the traffic lights at the bottom of Frankfield Hill are green for an extra 6 seconds every second cycle. Such a move would help the flow of traffic and ease traffic congestion on the Grange Road.’

(Proposer: Cllr. S. O’Callaghan 19/513)

South Central Local Area Committee – 27/01/2020

24. **NATIONAL FUNDING FOR THE NORTH WEST REGENERATION PROGRAMME**

‘That Cork City Council apply for national funding to retrofit the properties in Block, A, B, C, D under the NW Regeneration Programme.’

(Proposer: Cllr. T. Fitzgerald 19/514)

Housing Strategic Policy Committee – 16/12/2019

25. **MARKING THE REVOLUTIONARY YEARS 1918-1923**

‘In terms of marking the revolutionary years 1918-1923 Cork City Council will bring forward proposals previously discussed, including:

Information hub at the Republican Plot, St. Finbarr's Cemetery.

Walking smartphone app and maps featuring relevant areas, plaques and monuments of interest in and near the City Centre.

Commemorative keep-sake featuring former ArdMhéaraí Chorcaí Tomás MacCurtain and Terence MacSwiney.’

(Proposers: Cllr. H. Cremin, Cllr. K. Collins, Cllr. F. Kerins 19/518)

Party Whips – 27/01/2020

26. **TREE PLANTING SCHEME**

‘That Cork City Council (mindful of a previous proposal of mine to plant trees in memory of all those Cork people who died in World War 1) considers a wider planting scheme inviting members of the public to fund/sponsor trees in memory of their loved ones across existing parks in the city or in new community locations or suitable public spaces. Such a scheme would underpin the city’s climate action strategy, assist in our bio-diversity efforts and also meet the demand for commemorations and tree planting among the public.’

(Proposer: Cllr. M. Finn 19/520)

Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 20/01/2020

27. **COUNCIL MEETING AT THE NORTH MONASTERY**

‘That Cork City Council would consider holding a meeting of Council in The North Monastery School in commemoration of the 3 North Mon Lord Mayors who sat on Cork City Council in 1920.’

(Proposer: Cllr D. Boylan 19/521)

Party Whips – 27/01/2020

28. **YELLOW BOX AT BOREENMANNA ROAD AND SOUTH LINK**

‘That the City Council paint a yellow box as Boreenmanna Road meets the City inbound and outbound South Link lanes.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/522)

South East Local Area Committee – 28/01/2020

29. **REPAINT ROAD MARKINGS AT BLACKROCK ROAD**

‘That the City Council repaint the road line junction markings as Blackrock Road meets Victoria Road junctions.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/523)

South East Local Area Committee – 28/01/2020

30. **TREE PLANTING EVENTS**

‘That the City Council begin to host visible tree planting events that the public can engage with.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. McCarthy 19/524)

Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 20/01/2020

31. **DROPDOWN BANNER ON GRAND PARADE**

‘That Cork City Council will install a drop down banner on the Grand Parade for 2020 which would be a collage of images and personalities from the hugely significant year of 1920 in Cork and Ireland’s revolutionary story. This could feature the likes of Tomás MacCurtain, Terence MacSwiney, Joe Murphy, Michael Fitzgerald, The Delany Brothers and events such as the Kilmichael Ambush, The Burning of Cork by British Crown Forces.’

(Proposer: Cllr. K. Collins 19/526)

Party Whips – 27/01/2020

32. **ST. PATRICK’S DAY PARADE THEME**

‘That this Council consider the theme for 2020 St. Patrick’s Day Parade to be “1920 - a year in Cork & Ireland’s revolutionary story” with participants encouraged to reflect on the events of the time.’

(Proposers: Cllr. F. Kerins, Cllr. H. Cremin 19/527)

Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 20/01/2020

33. **CITY OF SANCTUARY ACTION PLAN**

‘To ask Community, Culture and Place-Making Directorate for a progress and implementation report on the City of Sanctuary Action Plan.’

(Proposer: Cllr K. McCarthy 19/528)

Community, Culture & Placemaking Strategic Policy Committee – 20/01/2020

34. **CYCLE LANE PROTECTION ON THE N22**

‘That the CE would expedite cycle lane protection measures on the N22 coming up to the junction of the R618 in Ballincollig.’

(Proposer: Cllr. C. Finn 19/529)

South West Local Area Committee – 27/01/2020

35. **AUDIO RECORDINGS OF FULL MEETINGS OF COUNCIL**

‘That Cork City Council will agree a policy to allow audio recordings of full meetings of Council and for the re-use/broadcast of these recordings by the media and the public.’

(Proposers: Cllr. O. Moran, Cllr. C. Finn, Cllr. L. Bogue, Cllr. D. Boyle 19/530)

Corporate Policy Group – 06/01/2020

36. **ILLEGAL PARKING ON GREEN AREAS IN BROOKLODGE GROVE AND BROOKLODGE DRIVE**

‘That Cork City Council will consult with residents in Brooklodge Grove and Brooklodge Drive on measures to address illegal parking on green areas in the estate. Options may include: Parking enforcement with regards to commercial vehicles parked on the green area at the vehicular entrance to the estate; some green-to-parking measures to relieve parking pressures, accompanied by suitable public realm improvements; physical protection of green areas from illegal parking; improvement of sustainable transport options by improving pedestrian access from the Hazelwood Road through provision of a surfaced path at the existing pedestrian access.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/531)

North East Local Area Committee - 27/01/2020

37. **CHILDREN’S PLAY AREA IN THE MONTENOTTE/MAYFIELD AREA**

‘That Cork City Council will prepare a report on the need for children's play area of similar scale to the one opened in Bishopstown in the Montenotte/Mayfield area, assessing locations such as the Glen Park and the area of the Tank Field that will be vacated following the completion of the new building for Gaelscoil An Ghoirt Álainn, and reporting on estimated costs and potential sources of funding.’

(Proposer: Cllr. O. Moran 19/532)

North East Local Area Committee - 27/01/2020

38. **PUBLIC ALLOTMENTS**

‘That this Council provide public allotments in each of its electoral areas.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/534)

Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 20/01/2020

39. **OFFICIAL TAXI RANK AT WASHINGTON STREET**

‘That an official taxi rank be provided for the Washington area, one that does not compromise existing cycle lanes on the street.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/535)

Roads & Transportation Strategic Policy Committee – 16/12/2019

40. **USE OF PUBLIC PARKS**

‘That this Council investigate the use of its public parks to create memorial forests/gardens, allowing members of the public to plant trees in honour of loved ones.’

(Proposer: Cllr. D. Boyle 19/536)

Environment, Water and Amenity Strategic Policy Committee – 20/01/2020

CATHERINE KELLY
MEETINGS ADMINISTRATOR

Chuig gach ball de Chomhairle Cathrach Chorcaí.

5^ú Nollaig 2019